



NAFTM

2012 ANNUAL REPORT

CHARITY GAMING IN NORTH AMERICA
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION of FUNDRAISING TICKET MANUFACTURERS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Mission Statement	2
Letter from the President.....	3
Introduction.....	4
Terminology	5
Games Played	6
Top 10 States.....	7
Receipts by Game	8 - 9
Fees and Taxes.....	10
Reporting Periods	11
Taxation and Administrative Fees Methods.....	12 - 13
Staffing Budget: Source of Budget.....	14
Legal Authority	15
Survey Participants – U.S.	16 - 17
Survey Participants – Canada	18

MISSION STATEMENT

The National Association of Fundraising Ticket Manufacturers (NAFTM) is a trade association of companies that manufacture pull tabs, bingo paper, and related supplies for the North American charitable gaming industry.

The association keeps members informed of ever-changing product standards, gaming laws, regulations, and enforcement practices. The NAFTM Seal, when affixed to any gaming product, ensures its recipient of a product that meets or exceeds any state standard, as well as the standards established by the North American Gaming Regulators Association (NAGRA). NAFTM also works closely with charitable organizations and in cooperation with Allied Charities of Minnesota (ACM) has published *Charity Gaming: An Association Guidebook* available to charities interested in developing a charity gaming association in their state or province.

For more information, please visit our website at www.naftm.org

LETTER FROM THE PRESIDENT

The National Association of Fundraising Ticket Manufacturers (NAFTM) is a trade association of companies that manufacture pull tabs, bingo paper and related supplies for the North American charitable gaming industry.

Much has changed in charitable gaming over the years. Bingo is no longer the only game in town. There is now a major casino within 150 miles of just about every major metropolitan area in the US and Canada. Many state governments are heavily in the gaming business and we have seen an explosion of internet cafés and sweepstakes parlors throughout the country. All of this activity has had an impact on charitable gaming. Local bingo games and other charitable gaming activity have had to adapt to this changing and challenging environment.

Even though much has changed, NAFTM members continue to provide innovative products to satisfy the demand of our customers. Our members' products provide a means for thousands of charitable organizations to raise funds for many worthwhile purposes, including: fire trucks for local communities, parks and play grounds, youth sports programs, local church education, and veterans and military services. These are just a few of the thousands of wonderful charitable purposes our products support.

Our association's most important work centers on protecting the standards, practices and integrity of our industry. The NAFTM seal represents an assurance that our products meet or exceed any state's standard as well as the standards established by the North American Gaming Regulators' Association.

We also work extensively with legislators and regulators throughout North America concerning laws, rules, policies and procedures that support and improve charitable gaming and promote effective and fair regulation.

NAFTM is committed to being the most dependable, creditable and informed source of information for the charitable gaming industry. We pledge to continue our work to ensure our industry continues for all the worthy purposes funded by charitable gaming activity.



Emile S. Bourgoyne, President



NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FUNDRAISING TICKET MANUFACTURERS

1295 Bandana Blvd.
Suite 335
St. Paul MN 55108

p: 651.644.4710
f: 651.644.5904
www.NAFTM.org

INTRODUCTION

Established in 1983, the National Association of Fundraising Ticket Manufacturers is a trade association of manufacturers of pull tabs, bingo paper and other supplies used by charities in their fundraising activities.

The members of NAFTM are committed to the promotion of charitable gaming as a profitable endeavor for charities to raise funds for their important activities and missions. NAFTM is dedicated to the continued improvement of the charitable gaming industry through the use of manufacturing and trade practices that meet or exceed governmental regulations. Effective regulation of charitable gaming is necessary for the health of the charitable gaming industry, and NAFTM supports and encourages effective government regulation.

NAFTM's mission includes the gathering of statistical and other information about the industry in an effort to supply the public, regulators, legislators and other interested parties with the best possible picture of charitable gaming. The information is published in an annual report, and this 2012 report reflects the most recent information about the

industry. The report should be a valuable tool for the many individuals and agencies that support efforts to improve charitable gaming in the United States and Canada.

Readers of the annual report will be able to find out how extensive charitable gaming is in the United States and Canada, and how much revenue is derived from the activity by charities. The number of licensees, taxation schemes, regulatory agency staffing, and law and regulation citations are contained in the report. The report also contains a list of contacts for those who require additional detail or elaboration.

Report readers may contact NAFTM to discuss other matters relating to charitable gaming, as well as the contents of this report.

NAFTM is grateful to the many agencies and individuals who supplied statistics and other information for this report. Thank you for your assistance in our effort to publish the most comprehensive report on charitable gaming in North America.

American Games, Inc.
504 34th Ave.
Council Bluffs, IA 51501
712.366.9553
www.amgam.com

GameTec
2214 Myers Rd.
Albert Lea, MN 56007
507.373.1871

Mary Magnuson, Legal Counsel
335 Atrium Office Building
1295 Bandana Blvd.
St. Paul, MN 55108
651.644.4710
651.644.5904 (fax)
www.NAFTM.org

Arrow International, Inc.
9900 Clinton Rd.
Cleveland, OH 44144
800.321.0757
www.arrowinternational.com

International Gamco, Inc.
9335 North 48th St.
Omaha, NE 68152
800.524.2626
www.intlgamco.com

Bingo King/Trade Products
2807 Lincoln Way
Lynnwood, WA 98087
425.745.3700 or 800.527.3891
www.bingoking.com

Complete game data not included in this report because (1) charity gaming is not permitted; (2) there is no central regulatory authority which collects data; (3) the activity is unregulated; or (4) they did not respond to the survey questionnaire.

TERMINOLOGY

WHAT IS BINGO?

“Bingo!” has become such a familiar term it extends beyond bingo hall doors into a phrase of excitement used around the world. Still the traditional way in which game participants express winning in a bingo game, it is also used to express surprise or sudden satisfaction.

The game itself has been around for centuries, its most recent origins being traced to 16th century Italy. Originally called “beano” in the nineteenth and early twentieth centuries, it became a short linguistic hop to term the game “bingo.” “Bingo” is now generally universally understood to describe a game in which participants compete against each other for prizes to be awarded on the basis of designated numbers or symbols on a bingo card that conform to numbers or symbols selected at random.

WHAT IS A PULL TAB?

Pull tabs are an integral part of the game of bingo and in other charitable fundraising efforts.

Officially, a “pull tab” is a folded or banded ticket, or a card with perforated tabs on one side, usually made of paper products, the face of which is covered or hidden to conceal numbers, symbols or letters. Some of the configurations of numbers, symbols or letters have been designated in advance as prize winners. Game participants open the tickets or perforated tabs and compare the configurations with game information sheets called “flares” to determine whether a particular ticket or pull tab is a winner.

The history of pull tabs is not nearly as extensive as that of bingo. Pull tabs emerged in the 1970s as a popular fundraising tool for charities and found easy acceptance in bingo games. They spread to other locations, such as fraternal clubs, service clubs and veterans’ organizations and in several states and provinces, into taverns.

By any other term, pull tabs are fun to play and have proved to be profitable for charities. They are also called break-open tickets, charity game cards, jar tickets, pickle cards, instant bingo cards, bell jars and lucky sevens in various regions in the United States and Canada.

OTHER TERMS USED IN THIS REPORT:

“**Gross Receipts**” is the total amount of money spent on a charity game by game participants. In a bingo game, it is the total amount wagered through the purchase of bingo cards. Pull tab games use the term to describe the total amount of money wagered through the purchase of the pull tabs in a game.

“**Net Proceeds**” is the amount of money left after the prizes and expenses have been paid. *In most instances taxes and fees are paid from the net receipts. Thus, the balance would be the profit to the charity.*

GAMES PLAYED

Bingo
Electronic Bingo
Pull Tabs
Progressive Pull Tabs
Seal Card Games
Jar Tickets
Raffles
Last Sale
Casino Nights
Other

State	Licensed Organizations									
Colorado	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	1241
Illinois	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	2167
Indiana	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	3259
Iowa	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	2423
Kentucky	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	654
Louisiana	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	616
Massachusetts	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	Bingo - 191
Michigan	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	7236
Minnesota	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	1238
Mississippi	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	84
Missouri	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	Regular - 315, Special - 295, Abbreviated Pull-Tab - 144
Nebraska	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	15
New Hampshire	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	2409
New Jersey	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	7565
New York	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	5974
North Dakota	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	329 organizations granted 610 jurisdictional licenses to operate in 918 sites
Oregon	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	571
Pennsylvania	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	5965
South Dakota	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	N/A - not licensed
Texas	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	1901
Virginia	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	362
Washington	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	1142 - NP, 1123 - CM, 2265 - Total
Washington, DC	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	44
Province	Licensed Organizations									
Alberta	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	11901
British Columbia	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	9897
Manitoba	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	835
Ontario	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	N/A
Saskatchewan	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	3709

TOP 10 STATES

TOP TEN STATES BY GROSS RECEIPTS

State	Total Gross Receipts
Minnesota	\$1,147,500,000
Texas	\$723,501,798
Washington	\$533,224,822
Michigan	\$477,765,430
Indiana	\$465,482,415
New York	\$386,248,859
Kentucky	\$383,838,108
North Dakota	\$293,741,343
Virginia	\$273,092,391
Nebraska	\$247,329,112

TOP TEN STATES BY NET RECEIPTS

State	Net Receipts
Minnesota	\$96,100,000
Indiana	\$66,930,187
Michigan	\$66,753,187
New Jersey	\$54,309,228
Kentucky	\$43,003,254
Virginia	\$34,821,655
Texas	\$28,738,394
Nebraska	\$24,469,837
North Dakota	\$21,708,109
Colorado	\$21,441,954

Top ten based on available reported statistics.



RECEIPTS BY GAME

State	Bingo Gross	Pull Tab Gross	Raffles Gross	Other Gross
Colorado	\$44,818,764	\$57,229,726	\$14,014,650	N/A
Illinois	\$37,920,000	\$90,440,000	N/A	\$10,566,667
Indiana	\$74,738,803	\$347,721,465	\$24,623,914	\$18,398,233
Iowa	\$13,254,530	N/A	\$11,843,801	\$1,204,174
Kentucky	\$76,372,714	\$285,685,772	\$14,357,805	\$7,448,817
Louisiana	\$94,760,500	\$91,667,800	\$2,903,500	\$16,457,900
Massachusetts	\$38,815,684	\$15,756,757	\$19,611,647	\$1,360,008
Michigan	\$85,702,177	\$148,749,400	\$59,137,097	\$184,176,756
Minnesota	\$64,700,000	\$1,050,000,000	\$8,300,000*	\$24,500,000**
Mississippi	\$81,717,677	\$10,297,900	N/A	\$752,834
Missouri	\$53,077,190	\$47,073,466	N/A	N/A
Nebraska	\$8,134,470	\$28,521,223	\$6,863,176	\$203,810,243
New Hampshire	\$15,900,000	\$60,900,000	N/A	\$79,000,000
New Jersey	\$40,086,208	\$45,198,925	\$38,780,957	N/A
New York	\$150,283,396	\$219,800,393	\$14,128,963	\$2,036,107
North Dakota	\$38,988,763	\$155,891,099	\$6,260,179	\$92,601,302
Oregon	\$28,368,626	N/A	\$6,328,891	\$490,115
Pennsylvania	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
South Dakota	information not collected	information not collected	information not collected	information not collected
Texas	\$360,350,148	\$363,151,650	N/A-Not Reported	N/A
Virginia	\$111,422,437	\$155,266,975	\$6,042,751	\$360,228
Washington	\$35,761,017	\$36,998,574 NP / \$201,963,489 CM / \$238,962,063 Total	\$8,743,354 NP	\$386,053 NP / \$249,372,335 CM / \$249,758,388 Total
Washington, DC	\$424,235	\$220,451	\$1,408,320	\$981,831

Province	Bingo Gross	Pull Tab Gross	Raffles Gross	Other Gross
Alberta	\$123,949,000	\$83,351,000	\$139,013,000	\$1,001,405,000
British Columbia	\$2,660	N/A	\$30,079,700	\$621,700
Manitoba	\$400,145	\$3,836,832	\$36,350,247	\$10,936
Ontario	\$597,495,796	\$294,448,790	\$263,504,006	N/A
Saskatchewan	\$18,500,000	\$3,500,000	\$51,200,000	\$43,000,000

Explanation – Receipts by Games Table

This table will provide the reader with a breakdown on how much is wagered by state or province in bingo, pull tabs, raffles and other games sponsored by charities ("gross receipts"). It will also identify the amount of money ("net proceeds") charities will have derived from the play of those games during the reporting period for that jurisdiction, and which they may use for their programs. Finally, a calculation is made to show the percentage of net proceeds to gross receipts so the reader may make comparisons among the reporting jurisdictions.

RECEIPTS BY GAME

Total Gross Receipts	Total Net Proceeds	% Net Proceeds/Gross Receipts
\$116,063,140	\$21,441,954	18%
\$138,926,667	N/A	N/A
\$465,482,415	\$66,930,187	14%
\$26,302,504	\$10,487,386	40%
\$383,838,108	\$43,003,254	11%
\$205,789,700	\$19,297,500	9%
\$75,544,090	\$18,259,937	24%
\$477,765,430	\$66,753,187	14%
\$1,147,500,000	\$96,100,000	8%
\$98,768,412	\$14,542,858	15%
\$100,461,921	\$10,008,711	10%
\$247,329,112	\$24,469,837	10%
\$155,800,000	\$11,500,000	7%
\$124,066,090	\$54,309,228	44%
\$386,248,859	N/A	N/A
\$293,741,343	\$21,708,109	7%
\$35,187,631	\$6,935,805	20%
N/A	N/A	N/A
information not collected	information not collected	N/A
\$723,501,798	\$28,738,394	4%
\$273,092,391	\$34,821,655	13%
\$81,888,998 NP / \$451,335,824 CM / \$533,224,822 Total	no longer tracked except for larger bingo and NP pulltabs	N/A
\$2,794,236	\$1,360,519	49%
Total Gross Receipts	Total Net Proceeds	% Net Proceeds/Gross Receipts
\$1,347,718,000	\$131,405,000	10%
\$33,341,200	N/A	N/A
\$81,295,266	\$19,707,016	24%
\$1,155,448,592	N/A	N/A
\$116,200,000	\$26,900,000	23%

Please Note: Canadian receipts are reported in Canadian dollars.

* Does not include tax-exempt raffles
** Paddlewheel & tipboards

FEES AND TAXES

State	License Fees	Adm. Fees	Taxes	Total
Colorado	\$124,100	\$330,049	N/A	\$454,149
Illinois	\$648,000	N/A	\$6,735,000	\$7,383,000
Indiana	\$4,020,250	N/A	N/A	\$4,020,250
Iowa	\$136,500	\$0	\$673,002	\$809,502
Kentucky	\$343,757	\$3,467,506	N/A	\$3,811,263
Louisiana	\$73,800	\$90,100	\$1,942,700	\$2,106,600
Massachusetts	N/A	N/A	\$2,998,547	\$2,998,547
Michigan	\$2,074,392	\$0	\$12,340,701	\$14,415,093
Minnesota	\$1,192,750	\$1,148,000	\$38,194,000	\$40,534,750
Mississippi	\$500	\$1,500,000	\$667,659	\$2,168,159
Missouri	\$24,930	N/A	\$2,113,377	\$2,138,307
Nebraska	\$335,476	\$0	\$5,149,330	\$5,484,806
New Hampshire	\$344,235	\$892,710	\$2,221,300	\$3,458,245
New Jersey	\$1,728,196	N/A	N/A	\$1,728,196
New York	\$2,164,123	N/A	\$2,794,286	\$4,958,409
North Dakota	\$91,500	N/A	\$5,419,322	\$5,510,822
Oregon	\$49,497	N/A	N/A	\$49,497
Pennsylvania	N/A	N/A	N/A	\$0
South Dakota	N/A	N/A	\$19,905	\$19,905
Texas	\$2,496	N/A	\$27,546,326	\$27,548,822
Virginia	\$62,200	\$2,573,568	N/A	\$2,635,768
Washington	\$12,410,249	\$0	\$30,539,477	\$42,949,726
Washington, DC	\$26,195	N/A	\$0	\$26,195
Province	License Fees	Adm. Fees	Taxes	Total
Alberta	N/A	N/A	N/A	\$0
British Columbia	N/A	N/A	N/A	\$0
Manitoba	\$1,115,988	\$0	\$0	\$1,115,988
Ontario	N/A	N/A	N/A	\$0
Saskatchewan	N/A	N/A	N/A	\$0

Explanation – Fees and Taxes: States and provinces use widely varying methods to assess fees and taxes for the costs of government to regulate charitable gaming and other government programs. The term "fee" is not only used to describe the amount of money charities and suppliers pay for a license to engage in charitable gaming activities, it is also used to encompass "administrative fees" calculated in some jurisdictions as a percentage of various amounts, much like a "tax." The widely varying practices have led to confusion in attempting to calculate meaningful comparisons. Reporting jurisdictions react differently when confronted with questions pertaining to "fees."

REPORTING PERIODS

State	Dates
Colorado	N/A
Illinois	07/01/2012 to 06/30/2013
Indiana	07/01/2011 to 06/30/2012
Iowa	07/01/2012 to 06/30/2013
Kentucky	N/A
Louisiana	07/01/2011 to 06/30/2012
Massachusetts	N/A
Michigan	10/01/2011 to 09/30/2012
Minnesota	07/01/2012 to 06/30/2013
Mississippi	07/01/2011 to 06/30/2012
Missouri	07/01/2011 to 06/30/2012
Nebraska	07/01/2011 to 06/30/2012
New Hampshire	07/01/2011 to 06/30/2012
New Jersey	N/A
New York	N/A
North Dakota	07/01/2011 to 06/30/2012
Oregon	N/A
Pennsylvania	N/A
South Dakota	07/01/2012 to 06/30/2013
Texas	N/A
Virginia	N/A
Washington	07/01/2011 to 06/30/2012
Washington, DC	10/01/2011 to 09/30/2012
Province	Dates
Alberta	07/01/2011 to 06/30/2012
British Columbia	06/30/2011 to 07/01/2012
Manitoba	04/01/2012 to 03/31/2013
Ontario	06/30/2011 to 07/01/2012
Saskatchewan	06/30/2012 to 07/01/2013

TAXATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE FEES METHODS

State	Bingo Method of Taxation/Fees	Pull Tab Method of Taxation/Fees
Colorado	N/A	N/A
Illinois	5%	5%
Indiana	N/A	N/A
Iowa	0%-7%	N/A
Kentucky	1%	1%
Louisiana	5% on bingo paper and electronic dabbers; 8% on paperless electronic dabbers	3% of Ideal Net (Net proceeds of tabs less cost)
Massachusetts	5% of gross	N/A
Michigan	n/a	40% of gross profit
Minnesota	8.5% of net receipts	Combined Receipts Tax based on cumulative receipts (9%-36% of net receipts)
Mississippi	A hall 1%-b-c hall 1/2%	2.50%
Missouri	2/10 of one cent per bingo face	2% of the gross receipts of the retail sales value charged for each pull-tab card sold
Nebraska	3% gross	10 % of definite profit - gross minus prizes
New Hampshire	7% of what	N/A
New Jersey	N/A	N/A
New York	\$18.75 per occasion + 3% of net (bingo) Not exceeding \$500K = 1% Gross Proceeds, exceeding \$500K but not exceeding \$1M = 1.5% of Gross Proceeds, exceeding \$1M but not exceeding \$1.5M = 2% Gross Proceeds, exceeding \$1.5M = 2.5% Gross Proceeds	\$18.75 per occasion + 3% of net (bingo)
North Dakota		same as stated for Bingo
Oregon	N/A	N/A
Pennsylvania	sales tax only	N/A
South Dakota	5% on wholesale price	5% on wholesale price
Texas	5% of prize	5% of prize
Virginia	N/A	N/A
Washington	5% of net receipts (max)	10% of net receipts NP / 5% of net receipts CM
Washington, DC	N/A	N/A
Province	Bingo Method of Taxation/Fees	Pull Tab Method of Taxation/Fees
Alberta	N/A	N/A
British Columbia	N/A	N/A
Manitoba	N/A	N/A
Ontario	N/A	N/A
Saskatchewan	N/A	N/A

TAXATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE FEES METHODS

Raffles/Other Method of Taxation/Fees	How Revenue is Used
N/A	N/A
N/A	Bingo - 50% Mental Health Fund - 50% Common School Fund Charitable Games - 2/3 IL. Gaming Law Enforcement Fund; 1/3 Dept. of Revenue Fund Pull Tabs - 50% Common School Fund; 50% IL. Gaming Law Enforcement Fund
N/A	N/A
0%-7%	General Fund
1%	Restricted Funds
N/A	All funds collected are designated for Charitable Gaming.
5% of gross	General Fund, Local Aid Fund, Lottery for Regulation
N/A	General Fund = 46.9%, MGCB = 1.3% (expenses began last 2 wks of FY), Admin Expenses=51.8%
8.5% of Net receipts	General Fund
N/A	Charity Charitable Gaming
N/A	Bingo Proceeds for Education Fund
2% gross	General Fund 60 - Cash Fund 40
N/A	Racing and Charitable Gaming Commission
N/A	N/A
2%	N/A
same as stated for Bingo	94% of all taxes go to the General Fund - 6% is distributed to local law enforcement.
N/A	N/A
N/A	N/A
N/A	General Fund
N/A	State General Fund
N/A	N/A
5% of net receipts but first \$10,000 are exempt	N/A
N/A	N/A
Raffles/Other Method of Taxation/Fees	How Revenue is Used
N/A	N/A

STAFFING BUDGET: SOURCE OF BUDGET

State	Total Staff	Agency Budget	Source of Agency Budget
Colorado	4	\$361,000	Licensee and Administrative fees
Illinois	6	Not Reported	Taxes
Indiana	18	\$1,385,836	License fees from qualified organizations, manufacturers and distributors. Fines associated/ imposed from gaming violations
Iowa	0.75	\$100,000	General Fund Appropriation
Kentucky	33	\$3,128,989	Application, Licensing, Financial Report Feed & Administrative Fines
Louisiana	20	\$1,776,100	Self generated through regulatory and licensing fees
Massachusetts	N/A	Not Reported	taxes and cost of charity game tickets
Michigan	22	\$6,966,000	Licensing fees and pull-tabs.
Minnesota	34	\$3,200,000	Dedicated fees
Mississippi	15	\$1,500,000	Self Funded
Missouri	5		Regulatory and/or licensing fees
Nebraska	12	\$3,000,000	Licenses fees and taxes
New Hampshire	N/A	Not Reported	Taxes & license fees
New Jersey	16	\$2,100,000	Self funded through registration, licensing, penalty fees, electronic bingo usage fees, and monthly bingo rental fees.
New York	8	Not Reported	N/A
North Dakota	15	\$1,261,000	General Fund / Special Funds
Oregon	4.65	\$418,203	License and Report fees
Pennsylvania	2	Not Reported	N/A
South Dakota	1 PT	Not Reported	N/A
Texas	33	\$2,034,399	State General Fund
Virginia	18	\$1,381,714	State General Fund (Direct Appropriation)
Washington	146	\$14,243,886	License fees, ID stamps, fines
Washington, DC	5	Not Reported	Appropriation
<hr/>			
Province	Total Staff	Agency Budget	Source of Agency Budget
Alberta	N/A	Not Reported	N/A
British Columbia	N/A	Not Reported	N/A
Manitoba	14	\$1,051,110	Licensing fees
Ontario	N/A	Not Reported	N/A
Saskatchewan	N/A	Not Reported	N/A

LEGAL AUTHORITY

State	Statutory Authority
Colorado	Connecticut General Statutes - Sections 7-169 through 7-186
Illinois	Pull tabs & Jar Games Act: 230 ILCS 20/1; Bingo Act: 230 ILCS 25/1
Indiana	1C 4-32.2 & 68 1 AC 21
Iowa	IOWA CODE CHAPTER 99B, IOWA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE CHAPTER 100, 103, 106, & 107
Kentucky	KRS Chapter 238 and KAR Title 820
Louisiana	LA. Revised Statute, Title 4, Section 701 et.seq and LA. Administrative Rules, Part I, chapters 17, 18, 19, 22, and 23 No change from previous year
Massachusetts	Chapter 10, Sections 37-40 of the Massachusetts General Laws. 961 CMR 3.00 - 3.07 (Lottery regulations) Chapter 271, Section 7A of the Massachusetts General Laws (Raffles and bazaars). 940 CMR 12.00 - 12.06 (raffle regulations - AG's office) 940 CMR 13.0 - 13.12 (bazaar regulations - AG's office) 961 CMR 4.00 - 4.05 (bazaar regulations - Lottery (bazaars conducted by Bingo licensees)).
Michigan	Bingo Act: Michigan Act 382 of the Public Acts of 1972, as amended Penal Code: Michigan Act 328 of the Public Acts of 1931, as amended
Minnesota	Minnesota Statute 349.11-349.23 & 297E - Rules 7861-7865
Mississippi	no change
Missouri	MO Constitution Article III, Section 39a, Chapter 313 - Reg. 11 CSR 45-30
Nebraska	NE Revised Statutes, Sections 9-201 to 9-266 NE Bingo Act; Sections 9-301 to 9-356, NE Pickle Card Lottery Act; Sections 9-401 to 9-437, NE Lottery & Raffle Act; Sections 9-601 to 9-635, NE County & City Lottery Act; Regulations: Title 316, Chapter 35
New Hampshire	RSA 287-E - RSA 287-D
New Jersey	N.J.S.A. 5:8-1 through 5:8-77; N.J.A.C. 13:47-1.1 through 13:47-20.33
New York	General Municipal Law - Article 9B & Article 14H, Executive Law Article 19-B & NYCRR 9E Rules & Regs
North Dakota	North Dakota Century Code Chapter 53-06.1, Adm. Code Article 99-01.3
Oregon	Oregon Revised Statutes Chapter 464 & Administrative Rule, Division 25
Pennsylvania	Local Option Small Games of Chance Act 10 P.S. 311-327 - Regs. 61 PA Code 901.1 et seq.
South Dakota	N/A
Texas	TX Const.- Art III, Sec 47 Lotteries & gift ent, Bingo Games Tex. Occ. Code Cpt 2001 16 Tex Adm. Code Ch. 402
Virginia	VA Statutes 18.2 340.15-38, 2.2-2455-6; 2.2-905-6; 19.2-389.A-14 & 11 VAC 15-22 & 11 VAC 15-31
Washington	RCW 9.46 Revised Code of Washington; WAC 230 Washington Administrative Code
Washington, DC	Title 30 District of Columbia Municipal Relugations
Province	Statutory Authority
Alberta	Criminal Code of Canada; Alberta Gaming & Liquor Act, and Gaming & Liquor Regulations
British Columbia	no change
Manitoba	Criminal Code of Canada Section 207 (1)(b) and Gaming Control Act of Manitoba
Ontario	Criminal Code of Canada; Gaming Control Act - 1992; Order-In-Council 2038/97, 267/98 & 1413/08
Saskatchewan	N/A

SURVEY PARTICIPANTS - U.S.

Colorado

Scott Gessler
Secretary of State
1700 Broadway, Ste. 200
Denver, CO 80290
(303) 894-2200
www.sos.state.co.us

Illinois

Brian Hamer
Director
Dept. of Revenue
101 W. Jefferson
Springfield, IL 62794
(217) 785-5864
www.tax.illinois.gov

Indiana

Ernest Yelton
Executive Director
Indiana Gaming Commission
101 W. Washington St.
East Tower, Ste. 1600
Indianapolis, IN 46204
(317) 232-0046
www.in.gov/igc

Iowa

Rod Roberts
Director
Dept. of Inspections and Appeals
321 East 12th Street
DesMoines, IA 50319
(515) 281-6848
www.dia.iowa.gov

Kentucky

Marty Hammons
Commissioner
Dept. of Charitable Gaming
132 Brighton Park Blvd.
Frankfort, KY 40601
(502) 573-5528
www.dcg.ky.gov

Louisiana

Michael Legendre
Revenue Tax Director
Louisiana Dept. of Revenue
Office of Charitable Gaming
P.O. Box 98502
Baton Rouge, LA 70884
(225) 925-1835
www.ocg.louisiana.gov

Massachusetts

Paul R. Sternburg
Director
State Lottery Commission
60 Columbian Street
Braintree, MA 02184
(781) 849-5555
www.masslottery.com

Michigan

Kathleen Oviedo
Deputy Commissioner
Charitable Gaming Division
101 E. Hillsdale
Lansing, MI 48933
(517) 335-5780
www.michigan.gov/cg

Minnesota

Tom Barrett
Executive Director
Gambling Control Board
1711 W. County Road B, Suite 300
Roseville, MN 55113
(651) 639-4000
www.gcb.state.mn.us

Mississippi

Allen Godfrey
Executive Director
Gaming Commission
620 North Street, Ste. 200
Jackson, MS 39202
(601) 576-3800
msgamingcommission.com

Missouri

Roger Stottlemyer
Executive Director
Gaming Commission
P.O. Box 1847
Jefferson City, MO 65102
(573) 526-5370
www.mgc.dps.mo.gov

Nebraska

Jim Haynes
Lottery and Charitable Gaming Director
Department of Revenue
1801 O Street
Lincoln, NE 68508
(402) 471-5600
www.revenue.ne.gov/gaming

SURVEY PARTICIPANTS - U.S.

New Hampshire

Paul M. Kelly
Racing & Charitable Gaming Commission
57 Regional Dr., Unit 3
Concord, NH 03301
(603) 271-2158
www.racing.nh.gov

New Jersey

Scott T. Jenkins
Legalized Games of Chance
Control Commission
124 Halsey Street
Newark, NJ 07101
(973) 273-8000
www.state.nj.us/ca.lgcc

New York

Robert Williams
Acting Executive Director
State Gaming Commission
P.O. Box 7500
Schenectady, NY 12301
(518) 395-5400
www.gaming.ny.gov

North Dakota

Keith Lauer
Director, Gaming Division
Office of Attorney General
600 E Boulevard Ave., Dept.125
Bismarck, ND 58505
(701) 328-4848
www.ag.nd.gov

Oregon

Elizabeth Grant
Attorney In Charge
Department of Justice
1515 SW Fifth Ave., Suite 410
Portland, OR 97201
(971) 673-1880
www.doj.state.or.us

Pennsylvania

Tim Young
Director
Department of Revenue
Strawberry Square, 4th and Walnut
Harrisburg, PA 17128
(717) 787-8275
www.revenue.state.pa.us

South Dakota

Michael S. Houdyshell
Department of Revenue
445 E Capitol Ave.
Pierre, SD 57501
(605) 773-3311
www.dor.sd.gov

Texas

Sandra K. Joseph
Director
Texas Lottery Commission
Charitable Bingo Operations Division
P.O. Box 16630
Austin, TX 78761
(800) 246-4677
txbingo.org

Virginia

Matthew Lohr
Commissioner
Department of Agriculture & Consumer
Services, Division of Consumer Protection
Office of Charitable & Regulatory Programs
102 Governor Street, Lower Level
Richmond, VA 23219
(804) 371-0495
www.vdacs.virginia.gov

Washington

Dave Trujillo
Director
State Gambling Commission
P.O. Box 42400
Olympia, WA 98504
(360) 486-3440
www.wsgc.wa.gov

Washington, D.C.

Buddy Roogow
Executive Director
Lottery & Charitable Games Control Board
2101 Martin Luther King Jr. Ave.
S.E. Washington, D.C. 20020
(202) 645-8000
www.dclottery.com

SURVEY PARTICIPANTS - CANADA

Alberta

Bill Robinson
Chief Executive Officer
Alberta Gaming & Liquor Commission
50 Corriveau Ave.
St. Albert, AB T8N 3T5
(780) 447-8500
www.aglc.gov.ab.ca

British Columbia

Douglas Scott
General Manager
Gambling Policy & Enforcement Branch
910 Government Street, Third Floor
Victoria, BC V8W 1X3
(250) 389-5311
www.gaming.gov.bc.ca

Manitoba

Rick Josephson
Executive Director
Manitoba Gaming Control Commission
800-215 Garry Street
Winnipeg, MB R3C 3P3
(204) 954-9400
www.mgcc.mb.ca

Ontario

Jean Major
CEO
Alcohol & Gaming Commission of Ontario
90 Sheppard Ave. E., Suite 200-300
Toronto, ON M2N 0A4
(416) 326-8700
www.agco.on.ca

Saskatchewan

Barry C. Lacey
President & CEO
Liquor & Gaming Authority
P.O. Box 5054
2500 Victoria Ave.
Regina, SK S4P 3M3
(306) 787-5563
www.slga.gov.sk.ca



NAFTM 2012 ANNUAL REPORT

© 2012 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FUNDRAISING TICKET MANUFACTURERS